
NEVADA STATE  
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 
 

June 3, 2020 
 

Teleconference 
1-669-900-6833 

Meeting ID: 960 6095 2586 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2

10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

11



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy, Ste 206, Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

March 19, 2020 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

via teleconference 
with public access at: 

Hilton Garden Inn 
7830 S Las Vegas Boulevard 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Krystal Freitas Jade Jacobo  Wayne Mitchell Helen Park 
Gener Tejero  Richard Tomasso Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Board Staff Present: 
 
Dave Wuest  Yenh Long  Brett Kandt  Shirley Hunting  
Joe Dodge  Leo Basch  Kristopher Mangosing 
 
President Park read the mission statement of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy to 
reiterate the Board’s duty to carry out and enforce the provisions of Nevada Law to protect 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public. 
 
Mr. Wuest introduced and congratulated Rolf Zakariassen as Governor Sisolak’s newest 
appointment to the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy for three-year terms. 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum 
 
President Park performed the roll call.  All Board Members were present and a quorum was 
established. 
 
2. Public Comment March 19, 2020, 9:00 AM 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
3. Approval of January 15-16, 2020, Minutes 
 

12



2 

 

Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to approve the January 15-16, 2020 Meeting Minutes. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo 
 
Rolf Zakariassen abstained from voting on this matter due to his absence at the last meeting. 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
4. Applications for Out-of-State Pharmacy License – Non Appearance  
  

A. Alliance Medication Services LLC – Tamaqua, PA 
B. Angels Pharmacy III LLC – Titusville, FL 
C. Costco Pharmacy #1348 – Jeffersonville, IN 
D. CVS/pharmacy #11339 – La Habra, CA 
E. Equinox Home Care, Inc. – Newport Beach, CA 
F. Fusion Rx Pharmacy – Fort Worth, TX 
G. Hill Derm Pharmacy Inc. – Sanford, FL 
H. HOMECARE RX INC. – Fairfield, NJ 
I. Jewel Pharmacy – Riverside, IL 
J. Lakeside Pharmacy – Lake Havasu City, AZ 
K. Meridian Meds, LLC – Lehi, UT 
L. Mixlab, Inc. – New York, NY 
M. Nob Hill Discount Pharmacy – Tamarak, FL 
N. SinfoniaRx, Inc. – Phoenix, AZ 
O. Somerset Pharmacy Inc – Somerset, KY 
P. Truepill NY LLC – Brooklyn, NY 

 
 Application for Out-of-State Compounding Pharmacy License – Non Appearance 
  

Q. National Pharmacy – West Hollywood, CA 
 

Applications for Out-of-State Medical, Devices, Equipment and Gases License – Non  
Appearance  
 

R. Acentus – Tampa, FL 
S. AdaptHealth Patient Care Solutions Inc – Auburn, AL 
T. AdaptHealth Patient Care Solutions Inc – Moon Township, PA 
U. AdaptHealth Patient Care Solutions Inc. – Moorestown, NJ 
V. Military Medical Supplies – Anaheim, CA 
W. Royal Biologics, Inc. – Hackensack, NJ 
X. Sleep Management, L.L.C. – Phoenix, AZ 

 
Applications for Out-of-State Wholesaler License – Non-Appearance  
 

Background Check Not Required by Law.  

 

13



3 

 

1. Distributor for Single Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(e))  
None  

 
2. Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(d)) 

 
Y. RedHill Biopharma, Inc. – Raleigh, SC 

 
3. Publicly Traded (NAC 639.593(7)(a)) 

   None 
 

4. VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c)) 
 

Z. Kaiser Foundations Hospital – Oakland, CA 
AA. Phoenix Assurance, LLC – Memphis, TN 

 
5. Manufacturer and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(c) and (d)) 

  None 
 

6. Publicly Traded and Manufacturer (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (d)) 
   None 
 

7. Publicly Traded and VAWD-Accredited (NAC 639.593(7)(a) and (c)) 
  None 

 

Background checks completed in compliance with NRS 639.500. No 

Disqualifying Events. 
 

BB. Kaiser Foundation Hospitals – Livermore, CA 
 

Application for Nevada Pharmacy License – Non Appearance 
 

CC. The ER at McCarran NW – Reno, NV 
 
Krystal Freitas recused from participation regarding Item 4 CC. 
 
Helen Park recused from participation regarding Item 4 D due to Roseman University’s grant 
partnership with CVS Health. 
 
Rolf Zakariassen recused from participation regarding Item 4 D due to his employment. 
 
Jade Jacobo requested clarification regarding Item 4 O’s services provided. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Board Staff would contact Item 4 O to clarify the services provided. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of 

Items 4 D and 4 CC. 

14



4 

 

 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Agenda Item 4 CC. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve Agenda Item 4 D. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
5. Discipline 

 
This agenda item has been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 
6. Status conference: Simplot Western Stockmen's (19-216-WH).   
 
Greg Brower was present as counsel representing Simplot Western Stockmen’s. 
 
Mr. Kandt provided a brief summary that in December 2019, the Board continued this 
disciplinary matter on the conditions that Simplot Western Stockmen’s suspend activity in 
Nevada until they become compliant with NRS 639.500.  
 
Mr. Kandt presented a Stipulation and Order for the Board’s consideration that Simplot 
Western Stockmen’s surrender wholesale license WH01894 and noted two typographical 
corrections. 
 
Mr. Brower had no objection to Mr. Kandt’s summary or the Stipulation and Order presented.   
 
Mr. Brower stated that at this time Simplot Western Stockmen’s has made the business 
decision to abandon becoming VAWD certified and/or to resume wholesaling products into 
Nevada. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to approve the Stipulation and Order with corrections as 

presented by Board Staff. 
 

15



5 

 

Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

Agenda Items 7-23 have been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 
24. Wholesalers Appearing Pursuant to NRS 639.500:   
 

A. Anutra Medical, Inc. – Morrisville, NC 
 
Jeff Danner, President, and Kevin Olcott, Vice President, appeared and were sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Olcott disclosed that in 1990 he was charged for driving under the influence. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Olcott’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Danner disclosed that in 1995 he was arrested for theft, curfew violation, minor in 
possession and consumption. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr Danner’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Danner and Mr. Olcott answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Anutra Medical, Inc. is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Broughton Pharmaceuticals – Savannah, GA (Ownership Change) 
 
Brad Allen, CEO, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Allen disclosed three reckless driving convictions on his record. 
 
Mr. Allen answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his treatment and 
recovery. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Allen’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his background 
check. 
 

16



6 

 

Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Broughton Pharmaceuticals is in compliance with 

NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

C. Primary Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Ocean Springs, MS 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that after review, Primary Pharmaceuticals, Inc. had no issues with 
compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 

D. Qualanex – Libertyville, IL 
 
Robert Goll, Director of Technology, and Laura Johnson, Director of Quality and Regulatory, 
appeared and were sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering 
testimony. 
 
Mr. Goll disclosed that in 2002 he was arrested, but not convicted for reckless driving, and 
received two charges for DUI in 2006 and 2013.   
 
Mr. Goll answered the questions to the Board’s satisfaction and testified that he has had no 
issues since 2013. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Goll’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his background 
check. 
 
Ms. Johnson disclosed a charge for DUI in 1987 and a charge for possession of marijuana in 
1986.   
 
Ms. Johnson answered the questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Ms. Johnson’s disclosure was consistent with the results of her 
background check. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Qualanex is in compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

E. Reliance Wholesale Inc. – Collierville, TN 
 

17



7 

 

Josh Navarro, President Reliance Wholesale Inc., appeared and was sworn by President 
Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Richard Dreitzer was present as counsel representing Reliance Wholesale Inc. 
 
Mr. Navarro disclosed charges and convictions for boat registration violation, automobile 
theft, possession of burglary tools and probation violations in 1993 and 1995 and a 2012 
charge for DUI that was reduced to reckless driving. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Navarro’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Navarro answered questions regarding his past arrests and probation. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Reliance Wholesale Inc. is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

F. Salus Medical, LLC – Phoenix, AZ 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Salus Medical, LLC has voluntarily surrendered their license 
WH02487. 
 

G. Vetsource - Portland, OR 
 
Andrew Bain, COO Vetsource, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to 
answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Bain disclosed a DUI charge in April 1990.  He stated that he paid a fine and performed 
community services and has had no issues with law enforcement since. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Bain’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his background 
check. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Vetsource is in compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

H. Victor Medical Company – Irvine, CA 

18



8 

 

 
Don Louchois, President Victor Medical Company, appeared and was sworn by President 
Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Louchois disclosed that in 1994 he pled guilty to a charge of conspiracy and the 
unregistered manufacturing of an animal product. 
 
Mr. Louchois stated that his company at the time was planning to manufacture an appetite 
stimulant used for horses that was unavailable at the time. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Louchois’ disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Louchois answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Victor Medical Company is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

I. X-Gen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. - Horseheads, NY 
 
Rob Liles, COO X-Gen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., appeared and was sworn by President Park 
prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Alex Hirschfield was present as counsel representing X-Gen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 
 
Mr. Liles disclosed two charges and convictions for DUI in 2002 and 2011. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Liles’ disclosure was consistent with the results of his background 
check. 
 
Mr. Liles answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his past discipline. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that X-Gen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is in compliance with 

NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

J. Brothers Healthcare, Inc. – Riverside, CA 

19



9 

 

 
Scott Carthey, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Carthey disclosed that in 2008 he was arrested and convicted for reckless driving with 
alcohol. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Carthey’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Carthey stated that he was on probation for six months and completed alcohol education 
and safe driving classes. 
 
Mr. Carthey answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved that Brothers Healthcare, Inc. is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

K. Direct Success Pharmacy Department - Farmingdale, NJ 
 
David McDaniel, Executive, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering 
questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. McDaniel disclosed that in the 1980’s he was charged but not convicted for possession of 
marijuana and charged for driving under the influence in 1985. 
 
Mr. McDaniel answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. McDaniel’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Direct Success Pharmacy Department is in 

compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

L. Hospital Pharmaceutical Consulting – San Antonio, TX 
 

20



10 

 

Fred Battah appeared and was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or 
offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Battah disclosed that he was arrested but not convicted due to his child calling 911 and 
hanging up the phone. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Battah’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Hospital Pharmaceutical Consulting is in compliance 

with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

M. JAMS Rx Coconut Creek – Coconut Creek, FL 
 
Peter Bizzarro, manager JAMS Rx Coconut Creek, appeared and was sworn by President 
Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Bizzarro disclosed that in 1989 he received a ticket for minor in consumption of alcohol 
and was arrested the same year for failure to pay that ticket. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Bizzarro’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Bizzarro answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that JAMS Rx Coconut Creek is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Jade Jacobo  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

N. Lifeline Pharmaceuticals – Miami, FL 
O. Lifeline Pharmaceuticals 2 – Ocean Springs, MS 

 
Rick Nielsen, CEO and President Lifeline Pharmaceuticals, appeared and was sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Nielsen disclosed that in 1996 he was arrested but not convicted for disturbing the peace.   
 

21



11 

 

Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Nielsen’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Nielsen answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Lifeline Pharmaceuticals and Lifeline 

Pharmaceuticals 2 are in compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

P. LLC Wholesale Supply – Tempe, AZ 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that LLC Wholesale Supply has surrendered their license.   
 

Q. Prodigy Health Supplier Corporation -  Austin, TX 
 
Kelli Skaggs, Vice President of Sales, Prodigy Health Supplier Corporation, appeared and 
was sworn by President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Ms. Skaggs disclosed that in February 2012, she was arrested and convicted for DWI.  Ms. 
Skaggs stated that she completed an alcohol education class and community service.  
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Ms. Skaggs’ disclosure was consistent with the results of her 
background check. 
 
Ms. Skaggs answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved that Prodigy Health Supplier Corporation is in compliance 

with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

R. Propharma Distribution, LLC – Arvada, CO 
S. Propharma Distribution, LLC – Franklin, NC 

 
Levi Ellis, President Propharma Distribution, LLC, appeared and was sworn by President 
Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Ellis disclosed that he was arrested but not convicted for eluding the police in 2005 and in 
2006 he pled guilty and paid a fine for disturbing the peace.  

22



12 

 

 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Ellis’ disclosure was consistent with the results of his background 
check. 
 
Mr. Ellis answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Michell moved that Propharma Distribution, LLC is in compliance with 

NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

T. Reliable Pharmaceutical Returns, LLC – Nashville, TN 
 
Jason Hime, Secretary Reliable Pharmaceutical Returns, LLC, appeared and was sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony.   
 
Mr. Hime disclosed that he had two DUI charges in his past.  Mr. Hime testified that he has 
had no issues with alcohol since 2010.   
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Hime’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Hime answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction regarding his treatment.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved that Reliable Pharmaceutical Returns, LLC is in 

compliance with NRS 639.500. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

U. Sola Pharmaceuticals – Baton Rouge, LA 
 
Keith Lanasa, CEO Sola Pharmaceuticals, appeared and was sworn by President Park prior 
to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Lanasa disclosed that he was arrested and charged for DUI in October 2017.   
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Lanasa’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Lanasa answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction. 

23



13 

 

 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Krystal Freitas moved that Sola Pharmaceuticals is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Richard Tomasso  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

V. Terrain Pharmaceuticals – Reno, NV 
 
James Maher, founding member Terrain Pharmaceuticals, appeared and was sworn by 
President Park prior to answering questions or offering testimony. 
 
Mr. Maher disclosed that in October 2006 he pled no contest to charges of disorderly 
conduct and public intoxication.  Mr. Maher explained that he paid a fine and attended a 
youth substance abuse program. 
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Mr. Maher’s disclosure was consistent with the results of his 
background check. 
 
Mr. Maher answered questions to the Board’s satisfaction.  
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved that Terrain Pharmaceuticals is in compliance with NRS 

639.500. 
 
Second: Rolf Zakariassen  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

W. Westminster Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Olive Branch, MS 
X. Greenhill Trading Inc – Brooklyn, NY 
Y. H & H Wholesale Services, Inc. – Troy, MI 

 
Mr. Wuest stated that Board Staff is waiting for background check results for Items 24 W, 24 
X, and 24 Y and explained that he would schedule these Items for the next meeting if 
necessary. 
 
Agenda Items 25-31 have been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 

32. Review of Audit No. 20-05 - Board of Pharmacy Licensing Process (Discussion Only) 
 
The Board heard this item in combination with Agenda Item 36 B. 
 
33. General Counsel Report 

24



14 

 

 
34. Executive Secretary Report: 
 

A. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Wuest presented the financials to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
 B. Temporary Licenses 

C. Staff Activities: 
1.  Meetings with Other Health Care Boards 
2.  Opioid Prescribing for Nurses  
3.  Legislative Committee on Regulations 
4.  EBAC Meeting 

D. Report to Board: 
1.  Licensing software update  
2.  COVID-19 report  
 

Mr. Wuest summarized the Board’s efforts regarding dealing with COVID-19 and regulatory 
waivers and guidance. 

 
 E. Board Related News 
 F. Licensing Activities Report 

1.  PMP Integration 
2.  Naloxone at Burning Man 

 
35. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

A. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510:  Schedule 1.  The 
proposed amendment to NAC 453.510 will add Etizolam to the controlled 
substances listed in schedule 1.  (LCB File No. R093-19) 
 

Mr. Wuest and Ms. Long provided background information.   
 
President Park opened the Public Comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to adopt the proposed regulation.  
 
Second: Jade Jacobo  
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. This agenda item has been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board 
Meeting. 

 

25



15 

 

36. Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2)  
 

A. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.520: Schedule II. The 
proposed amendment to NAC 453.520 will add a precursor to fentanyl, 4-Anilino-N-
Phenethyl-4-Piperidine (ANPP) (some trade or other names: 4-ANPP; despropionyl 
fentanyl), to the list of controlled substances listed in Schedule II. 

 
Ms. Long provided background information.   
 
Ms. Long stated that the proposed language was requested by the Crime Lab. 
 
Board discussion ensued regarding scheduling ANPP in Schedule I.   
 
Mr. Wuest stated that Board Staff would research if ANPP is a commercially available 
product. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to adopt the proposed amendment and bring this matter to 

Public Hearing with the modification to schedule ANPP in Schedule I. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

B. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639. The proposed amendment 
relates to the licensing and regulation of wholesalers. 
 

The Board heard this item in combination with Agenda Item 32. 
 
Mr. Wuest provided background information regarding the audit. 
 
Ms. Long read each audit recommendation into the record. 
 
Mr. Kandt and Mr. Wuest discussed how Staff has updated licensing and background check 
procedures to comply with each recommendation and where it is listed in the proposed 
language. 
 
President Park acknowledged Board Staff on taking accountability for the issues discovered 
by the audit and thanked Board Staff for their work on correcting the problem. 

 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Richard Tomasso moved to adopt the proposed language and move forward to 

Public Hearing. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 

26



16 

 

Action: Passed unanimously 
 

C. This agenda item has been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 

D. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  The proposed 
amendment relates to the licensing and regulation of the practice of pharmacy.  

 
Mr. Kandt explained that the proposed amendment clarifies that the Executive Secretary may 
require an applicant to appear before the Board if the application discloses any information 
that would be grounds for discipline. 
 
After discussion the Board expressed support of the proposed amendment. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Jade Jacobo moved to adopt the proposed language and move forward to 

Public Hearing. 
 
Second: Wayne Mitchell 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 

37. This agenda item has been continued to the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. 
 

38. Date and Location of Next Scheduled Board Meeting: 
 
  April 15-16, 2020 – Las Vegas, NV 
 
39. Public Comment March 19, 2020, 12:30 PM 
 
40. Adjournment 
 
President Park adjourned the meeting. 

27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

28



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy, Ste 206, Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

March 23, 2020 
 

BOARD MEETING 
 

Teleconference Line 
1-669-900-6833  

Meeting ID: 113 761 560 
 
Board Members Present: 
 
Krystal Freitas Jade Jacobo  Wayne Mitchell Helen Park 
Gener Tejero  Richard Tomasso Rolf Zakariassen 
 
Board Staff Present: 
 
Dave Wuest  Yenh Long  Brett Kandt  Kristopher Mangosing 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call – Establishment of Quorum 
 
President Park performed the roll call.  All Board Members were present and a quorum was 
established. 
 
2. Public Comment March 23, 2020, 2019 3:30 PM 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
3. Discussion and Possible Action on Adoption of Emergency Regulation pursuant to 
NRS 233B.0613 to Restrict the Prescribing and Dispensing of Chloroquine or 
Hydroxychloroquine in Response to COVID-19. 
 
President Park opened the discussion regarding the possible adoptions of emergency 
regulation pursuant to NRS 233B.0613. 
 
Mr. Wuest and Mr. Kandt provided background information regarding the emergency 
regulation process and proposed language. 
 
Beth Slamowitz described the Governor’s COVID-19 Medical Advisory Team’s (MAT) 
concerns regarding the supply of chloroquine and hydroxychloroquine for use in an inpatient 

29



 

2 

 

setting.  Ms. Slamowitz summarized the MAT’s recommendations for the proposed 
emergency regulation. 
 
The Board discussed the hoarding and stockpiling of chloroquine and hydroxychloroquine 
during the COVID-19 pandemic and the resulting shortage of supplies of these drugs for 
legitimate medical purposes.  The Board noted that the FDA has not made any determination 
on the safety and efficacy of chloroquine or hydroxychloroquine for treating COVID-19. 
 
The Board discussed an emergency regulation in NAC Chapter 639 to restrict the prescribing 
and dispensing of chloroquine and hydroxychloroquine for the next six months. These 
restrictions include prohibiting the prescribing and dispensing of chloroquine and 
hydroxychloroquine for a COVID-19 diagnosis or any new diagnosis made after the effective 
date of the regulation, and requiring an ICD-10 code and a limit to a 30-day supply for any 
new prescription for these drugs.  The provisions of this emergency regulation would not 
apply to a chart order for an inpatient in an institutional setting or to an existing course of 
treatment for a diagnosis made before the effective date of the regulation.  
 
Mr. Kandt read the proposed language into the recording including modifications indicated by 
the Board during discussion. 
 
President Park opened the Public Comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Board Action: 
 
Motion: Wayne Mitchell moved to adopt the emergency regulation, pursuant to NRS 

233B.0613 as presented by Board Staff. 
 
Second: Krystal Freitas 
 
Action: Passed unanimously 
 
4. Public Comment March 23, 2020 4:30 PM 
 
Diane Rhee expressed support of the Emergency Regulation adopted by the Board. 
 
30. Adjournment 
 
President Park adjourned the meeting. 

30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5A

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5B

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5C

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5D

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5E

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5F

89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5G

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5H

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5I

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5J

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5K

150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5L

162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5M

174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5N

183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5O

195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5P

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Q

220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5R

237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5S

247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5T

257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5U

267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5V

278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5W

290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5X

301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Y

311



312



313



314



315



316



317



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5Z

318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5AA

338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5BB

347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5CC

357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5DD

370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5EE

393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5FF

415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5GG

441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5HH

470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5II

485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



501



502



503



504



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5JJ

505



506



507



508



509



510



511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5KK

522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



535



536



537



538



539



540



541



542



543



544



545



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5LL

546



547



548



549



550



551



552



553



554



555



556



557



558



559



560



561



562



563



564



565



566



567



568



569



570



571



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5MM

572



573



574



575



576



577



578



579



580



581



582



583



584



585



586



587



588



589



590



591



592



593



594



595



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5NN

596



597



598



599



600



601



602



603



604



605



606



607



608



609



610



611



612



613



614



615



616



617



618



619



620



621



622



623



624



625



626



627



628



629



630



631



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5OO

632



633



634



635



636



637



638



639



640



641



642



643



644



645



646



647



648



649



650



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5PP

651



652



653



654



655



656



657



658



659



660



661



662



663



664



665



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5QQ

666



667



668



669



670



671



672



673



674



675



676



677



678



679



680



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5RR

681



682



683



684



685



686



687



688



689



690



691



692



693



694



695



696



697



698



699



700



701



702



703



704



705



706



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5SS

707



708



709



710



711



712



713



714



715



716



717



718



719



720



721



722



723



724



725



726



727



728



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5TT

729



730



731



732



733



734



735



736



737



738



739



740



741



742



743



744



745



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5UU

746



747



748



749



750



751



752



753



754



755



756



757



758



759



760



761



762



763



764



765



766



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5VV

767



768



769



770



771



772



773



774



775



776



777



778



779



780



781



782



783



784



785



786



787



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5WW

788



789



790



791



792



793



794



795



796



797



798



799



800



801



802



803



804



805



806



807



808



809



810



811



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5XX

812



813



814



815



816



817



818



819



820



821



822



823



824



825



826



827



828



829



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5YY

830



831



832



833



834



835



836



837



838



839



840



841



842



843



844



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5ZZ

845



846



847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



860



861



862



863



864



865



866



867



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5AAA

868



869



870



871



872



873



874



875



876



877



878



879



880



881



882



883



884



885



886



887



888



889



890



891



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5BBB

892



893



894



895



896



897



898



899



900



901



902



903



904



905



906



907



908



909



910



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5CCC

911



912



913



914



915



916



917



918



919



920



921



922



923



924



925



926



927



928



929



930



931



932



933



934



935



936



937



938



939



940



941



942



943



944



945



946



947



948



949



950



951



952



953



954



955



956



957



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5DDD

958



959



960



961



962



963



964



965



966



967



968



969



970



971



972



973



974



975



976



977



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5EEE

978



979



980



981



982



983



984



985



986



987



988



989



990



991



992



993



994



995



996



997



998



999



1000



1001



1002



1003



1004



1005



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5FFF

1006



1007



1008



1009



1010



1011



1012



1013



1014



1015



1016



1017



1018



1019



1020



1021



1022



1023



1024



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5GGG

1025



1026



1027



1028



1029



1030



1031



1032



1033



1034



1035



1036



1037



1038



1039



1040



1041



1042



1043



1044



1045



1046



1047



1048



1049



1050



1051



1052



1053



1054



1055



1056



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5HHH

1057



1058



1059



1060



1061



1062



1063



1064



1065



1066



1067



1068



1069



1070



1071



1072



1073



1074



1075



1076



1077



1078



1079



1080



1081



1082



1083



1084



1085



1086



1087



1088



1089



1090



1091



1092



1093



1094



1095



1096



1097



1098



1099



1100



1101



1102



1103



1104



1105



1106



1107



1108



1109



1110



1111



1112



1113



1114



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5III

1115



1116



1117



1118



1119



1120



1121



1122



1123



1124



1125



1126



1127



1128



1129



1130



1131



1132



1133



1134



1135



1136



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5JJJ

1137



1138



1139



1140



1141



1142



1143



1144



1145



1146



1147



1148



1149



1150



1151



1152



1153



1154



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5KKK

1155



1156



1157



1158



1159



1160



1161



1162



1163



1164



1165



1166



1167



1168



1169



1170



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5LLL

1171



1172



1173



1174



1175



1176



1177



1178



1179



1180



1181



1182



1183



1184



1185



1186



1187



1188



1189



1190



1191



1192



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5MMM

1193



1194



1195



1196



1197



1198



1199



1200



1201



1202



1203



1204



1205



1206



1207



1208



1209



1210



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5NNN

1211



1212



1213



1214



1215



1216



1217



1218



1219



1220



1221



1222



1223



1224



1225



1226



1227



1228



1229



1230



1231



1232



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5OOO

1233



1234



1235



1236



1237



1238



1239



1240



1241



1242



1243



1244



1245



1246



1247



1248



1249



1250



1251



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5PPP

1252



1253



1254



1255



1256



1257



1258



1259



1260



1261



1262



1263



1264



1265



1266



1267



1268



1269



1270



1271



1272



1273



1274



1275



1276



1277



1278



1279



1280



1281



1282



1283



1284



1285



1286



1287



1288



1289



1290



1291



1292



1293



1294



1295



1296



1297



1298



1299



1300



1301



1302



1303



1304



1305



1306



1307



1308



1309



1310



1311



1312



1313



1314



1315



1316



1317



1318



1319



1320



1321



1322



1323



1324



1325



1326



1327



1328



1329



1330



1331



1332



1333



1334



1335



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5QQQ

1336



1337



1338



1339



1340



1341



1342



1343



1344



1345



1346



1347



1348



1349



1350



1351



1352



1353



1354



1355



1356



1357



1358



1359



1360



1361



1362



1363



1364



1365



1366



1367



1368



1369



1370



1371



1372



1373



1374



1375



1376



1377



1378



1379



1380



1381



1382



1383



1384



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5RRR

1385



1386



1387



1388



1389



1390



1391



1392



1393



1394



1395



1396



1397



1398



1399



1400



1401



1402



1403



1404



1405



1406



1407



1408



1409



1410



1411



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

1412



MATRIX GUIDELINE FOR 
DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS 

1st Action 2nd Action 3rd Action 

Non ingested error Letter Letter Hearing 
Counseling CE + 

No counseling $750.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Attorney Fees and Costs Actual Actual  Actual 

Ingested no potential harm  $500.00 $1000.00 Hearing 

Ingested with potential harm 
or adverse outcomes $1000.00 Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with negative outcome 
or patient discomfort. 
No institution intervention  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with significant negative 
health circumstance. 
With institution admit Hearing Hearing Hearing 

Ingested with death related to 
inappropriate drug therapy  Hearing Hearing Hearing 

The investigative committee will review each case individually and may recommend a board 
hearing, particularly with mitigating circumstances such as inappropriate technician 
involvement or pharmacist malfeasance. 

In certain cases with ingested errors and significant negative health circumstances requiring 
institutional care, the investigative committee recommendation will be a board hearing. 

In all death cases resulting from inappropriate drug therapy a board hearing will occur. 

Attorney fees and costs may be added in contested disciplinary actions requiring extensive 
attorney preparation and presentation and are not described in the above matrix. 

The board has directed that ownership may be charged in disciplinary cases.  In non-ingested 
errors copies of admonition letters will be sent to management.  Accumulative actions for 
ownership monitoring will be based upon a 3 year period.  All actions including non-ingested 
errors will be given a case number and monitored. 

The Board has the authority to fine from $0.00 to $10,000 for each Cause of Action. 

Updated May 2019 

413
1413



1414



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6A

1415



1416



1417



1418



1419



1420



1421



1422



1423



1424



1425



1426



1427



1428



1429



1430



1431



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6B

1432



1433



1434



1435



1436



1437



1438



1439



1440



1441



1442



1443



1444



1445



1446



1447



1448



1449



1450



1451



1452



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6C

1453



1454



1455



1456



1457



1458



1459



1460



1461



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6D

1462



1463



1464



1465



1466



1467



1468



1469



1470



1471



1472



1473



1474



1475



1476



1477



1478



1479



1480



1481



1482



1483



1484



1485



1486



1487



1488



1489



1490



1491



1492



1493



1494



1495



1496



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6E

1497



1498



1499



1500



1501



1502



1503



1504



1505



1506



1507



1508



1509



1510



1511



1512



1513



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6F

1514



1515



1516



1517



1518



1519



1520



1521



1522



1523



1524



1525



1526



1527



1528



1529



1530



1531



1532



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6G

1533



1534



1535



1536



1537



1538



1539



1540



1541



1542



1543



1544



1545



1546



1547



1548



1549



1550



1551



1552



1553



1554



1555



1556



1557



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6H

1558



1559



1560



1561



1562



1563



1564



1565



1566



1567



1568



1569



1570



1571



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6I

1572



1573



1574



1575



1576



1577



1578



1579



1580



1581



1582



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

1583



1584



1585



1586



1587



1588



1589



1590



1591



1592



1593



1594



1595



1596



1597



1598



1599



1600



1601



1602



1603



1604



1605



1606



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8

1607



1608



1609



1610



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9

1611



1612



1613



1614



1615



1616



1617



1618



1619



1620



1621



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10

1622



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

1623



1624



1625



1626



 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Damonte Ranch Pkwy Suite 206, Reno, Nevada 89521 

(775) 850-1440  •  1-800-364-2081  •  FAX  (775) 850-1444 

•  Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

 

 

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

 

ACTIVITIES REPORT 

MARCH 19, 2020 BOARD MEETING HELD IN LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 

 

This report is prepared and presented to keep interested legislators and others abreast of the activities of the Nevada 

State Board of Pharmacy.  Following is a summary of the March 2020 Board meeting. 

 

Licensing Activity: 

 

- 16 licenses were granted for Out-of-State pharmacies. 

- 1 license was granted for Out-of-State Compounding pharmacies. 

- 7 licenses were granted for Out-of-State Medical Devices, Equipment and Gases (MDEG) companies. 

- 1 license was granted for Nevada pharmacies. 

- 4 licenses were granted for Out-of-State Wholesalers 

 

Disciplinary Actions: 

 

- Wholesaler SWS surrendered their license for failure to comply with the requirements of NRS 639.500. 

 

Other Activity: 

  

- The usual Board business reports were given, including recent and future speaking engagements; reports 

on national meetings; and collaboration with other state agencies. 

- Licensing software update was provided. 

 

Public Hearing: 
 

1. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.510:  Schedule 1.  The proposed 

amendment to NAC 453.510 will add Etizolam to the controlled substances listed in schedule 1.  (LCB File 

No. R093-19) 

 

Workshop: 

 

1. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.520: Schedule II. The proposed 

amendment to NAC 453.520 will add a precursor to fentanyl, 4-Anilino-N-Phenethyl-4-Piperidine (ANPP) 

(some trade or other names: 4-ANPP; despropionyl fentanyl), to the list of controlled substances listed in 

Schedule II. 

 

2. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639. The proposed amendment relates to the 

licensing and regulation of wholesalers. 

 

3. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  The proposed amendment relates to the 

licensing and regulation of the practice of pharmacy.  

 

1627



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

1628



1629



1630



1631



1632



1633



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

1634



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13A

1635



1636



1637



1638



1639



1640



1641



1642



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13B

1643



1644



1645



1646



1647



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13C

1648



1649



1650



1651



1652



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13D

1653



 

1 

 

Proposed Regulation of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

Workshop June 3, 2020 

 

Explanation – Language in blue italics is new; language in red text [omitted material] is 

language to be omitted, and language in green text indicates prior Board-approved amendments 

that are in the process of being codified. 

 

AUTHORITY:  §1, NRS 639.070 

 

A REGULATION relating to controlled substances; removing certain substances to the 

controlled substances listed in Schedule V; and providing other matters properly 

relating thereto. 

 

 NAC 453.550  Schedule V. (NRS 453.146, 639.070) 

     1.  Schedule V consists of the drugs and other substances listed in this section, by whatever 

official, common, usual, chemical or trade name designated. 

     2.  Any compound, mixture or preparation containing any of the following narcotic drugs or 

their salts calculated as the free anhydrous base alkaloid, containing one or more nonnarcotic 

active medicinal ingredients in sufficient proportion to confer upon the compound, mixture or 

preparation valuable medicinal qualities other than those possessed by the narcotic drug alone, in 

quantities: 

     (a) Not more than 200 milligrams of codeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams; 

     (b) Not more than 100 milligrams of dihydrocodeine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams; 

     (c) Not more than 100 milligrams of ethylmorphine per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams; 

     (d) Not more than 2.5 milligrams of diphenoxylate and not less than 25 micrograms of 

atropine sulfate per dosage unit; 

     (e) Not more than 100 milligrams of opium per 100 milliliters or per 100 grams; or 

1654

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-453.html#NRS453Sec146
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-639.html#NRS639Sec070


 

2 

 

     (f) Not more than 0.5 milligram of difenoxin and not less than 25 micrograms of atropine 

sulfate per dosage unit. 

     3.  Unless specifically excepted or excluded or unless listed in another schedule, any 

material, compound, mixture or preparation which contains any quantity of pyrovalerone having 

a stimulant effect on the central nervous system, including their salts, isomers and salts of 

isomers. 

     4.  Unless specifically excepted or excluded or unless listed in another schedule, any 

material, compound, mixture or preparation which contains any quantity of pregabalin having a 

depressant effect on the central nervous system, including their salts, isomers and salts of 

isomers. 

 5.    Lacosamide.  

6. A drug product which: 

(a) Has been approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration; 

 

(b) Contains CBD derived from any plant in the genus Cannabis or the resinous 
 

extractives thereof; and 

(c) Contains not more than 0.1 percent residual THC by weight. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

1655



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13E

1656



1657



1658



1659



1660



1661



1662



1663



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

1664



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15

1665



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16

 

1666


	Cover
	June 2020 Amended Agenda
	3.	Approval of March 19, 2020, Minutes 
	4.	Approval of March 23, 2020, Emergency Meeting Minutes 
	5. June 2020 Consent Agenda
	A.	Alegent Creighton Health – Omaha, NE
	B. Allcare Plus Pharmacy LLC – Northborough, MA
	C.	BioPlus Specialty Pharmacy Services, LLC – Altamonte Springs, FL
	D.	DSC Logistics, LLC – Elwood, IL
	E.	Express Rx Pharmacy & Medical – Los Angeles, CA
	F.	IWO Pharmacy & Wellness – Missouri City, TX
	G.	MedScripts Medical Pharmacy – Greenville, SC
	H.	Northwind Pharmacy – Indianapolis, IN
	I.	Optum Pharmacy 701, LLC – Woodinville, WA
	J.	Overlake Pharmacy LLC – Redmond, WA
	K.	Placida Rx LLC – Englewood, FL
	L.	Premier Care Pharmacy - Orem, UT
	M.	RARX, LLC – Nashville, TN
	N.	Rite RX Pharmacy – Hollywood, FL
	O.	River Medical Pharmacy – San Antonio, TX
	P.	Route 300 Pharmacy – Newburgh, NY
	Q.	Spring Meds Inc. – Sioux Falls, SD
	R. TFP Wellness Systems – Tampa, FL
	S.	ClearMD Pharmacy, LLC – Millburn, NJ
	T.	Meds LLC -  Chicago, IL
	U.	Total Care Rx, Inc. – Oakland Gardens, NY
	V.	Better Health Supplies, Inc. – San Francisco, CA
	W.	BioTAB, LLC – St. Louis, MO
	X.	Gordian Medical II, Inc. – Spring, TX
	Y.	HARP Medical Supply – Wake Forest, NC
	Z.	Pathema DME LLC – Lauderhill, FL
	AA.	Solara Medical Supplies, LLC – Livonia, MI
	BB.	Wellspect Inc – Braselton, GA
	CC.	LifeCare Medical Supplies West Inc. – Las Vegas, NV
	DD.	Acella Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Alpharetta, GA
	EE.	Althera Pharmaceuticals LLC – Morristown, NJ
	FF.	Amring Pharmaceuticals Inc. – Berwyn, PA
	GG.	Cipla USA, Inc. – Warren, NJ
	HH.	Ferndale Laboratories, Inc. – Ferndale, MI
	II.	Horizon Therapeutics USA, Inc. – Lake Forest, IL
	JJ. Kawasumi Laboratories America, Inc. – Tampa, FL
	KK.	Lynch Biologics, LLC – Franklin, TN
	LL.	Meitheal Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Chicago, IL
	MM.	Millicent U.S., Inc. – East Hanover, NJ
	NN.	MorphoSys US Inc. – Boston, MA
	OO.	Olympus America, Inc. – Center Valley, PA
	PP.	Oxford Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Birmingham, AL
	QQ.	Posey Products, LLC – Ontario, CA
	RR.	NS Pharma, Inc. – Paramus, NJ
	SS.	Pageview Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Maryland Heights, MO
	TT.	Sigmapharm Laboratories, LLC – Bensalem, PA
	UU.	SK Life Science, Inc. – Paramus, NJ
	VV. TerSera Therapeutics LLC – Deerfield, IL
	WW.	Veloxis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – Cary, NC
	XX.	R&S Northeast, LLC – Fountain Run, KY
	YY.	R&S Northeast, LLC – Philadelphia, PA 
	ZZ.	TAGI Pharma – South Beloit, IL
	AAA.	UPS Supply Chain Solutions, Inc. – Buford, GA
	BBB.	UPS Supply Chain Solutions, Inc. – Louisville, KY
	CCC.	UPS Supply Chain Solutions, Inc. – Tracy, CA
	DDD.	Assertio Therapeutics, Inc. – Lake Forest, IL
	EEE.	Biohaven Pharmaceuticals, Inc. – New Haven, CT
	FFF.	Deciphera Pharmaceuticals, LLC – Waltham, MA
	GGG.	Evofem Biosciences, Inc. – San Diego, CA
	HHH. Napo Pharmaceuticals, Inc – San Francisco, CA
	III.	Amazon.com Services, LLC – Plainfield, IN
	JJJ.	FFF Enterprises – Flower Mound, TX
	KKK.	Life-Assist, Inc. – Lenexa, KS
	LLL.	Mockingbird Pharma LLC – Garland, TX
	MMM.	Q Med Corporation – Ft. Lauderdale, FL
	NNN.	Somerset Pharma, LLC – Somerset, NJ
	OOO.	SPYKA Wholesale Inc – Fairmont, WV\
	PPP.	Advanced Orthopaedic Surgery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	QQQ.	Desert Orthopaedic Center Recovery Center – Las Vegas, NV
	RRR.	Seven Hills ASC – Henderson, NV

	6. June 2020 Discipline
	A.	Kristin Hestdalen, MD			(19-228-CS-N) 
	B.	Silvia Torres, R.Ph			(17-081-RPH-S)
	C.	Walgreens #07864			(17-081-PH-S)
	D.	Joshua Aighobahi			(19-035-RPH-A-S)
	E. Felicia Aighobahi   (19-035-PT-S)
	F.	Divine Touch Services			(19-035-PH-S)
	G.	Rose Bellota-Rojas, MD		(18-103-CS-A-S)
	H.	Anuranjan Bist, MD			(18-103-CS-B-S)
	I.	Dithra Cotton-Lewis, APRN		(18-103-CS-C-S)

	7. Approval of Revised Controlled Substance Registration, Pharmaceutical Technician Registration and Pharmacist Registration Application Forms
	8.	Discussion and possible action on approval of Nevada Career Institute as a program of training for pharmaceutical technicians pursuant to NAC 639.256  
	9.	Discussion and possible action to request a Nevada attorney general opinion pursuant to NRS 228.150 on whether Nevada law authorizes Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists to select and order anesthetic agents from a licensed institutional pharmacy in order to possess and administer these agents to patients.  
	10.	General Counsel Report
	11.	Executive Secretary Report: 
	12. Notice of Proposed Regulation Public Hearing Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2
	13.	Notice of Proposed Regulation Workshop Pursuant to NRS 233B.061(2) 
	A.	Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639. 
	B.	Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.520: Schedule II
	C. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  Electronic Transmission of prescriptions AB 310
	D.	Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 453.550: Schedule V
	E. Amendment of Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 639.  P & T

	16. Adjournment



